
ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING 
AGENDA 
JUNE 17, 2024, 5:00 PM 

I. Welcome

II. Approval of the Minutes from the 2023 Annual Meeting
A. *June 26, 2023 Annual Meeting

III. Year-in-Review
A. Year-End Activity Report (DeBardelaben)
B. *Financial Report (Lunsford)

IV. Election of New Board Members
A. Nominating Committee Report
B. Nominations from the Floor
C. *Close Nominations
D. Introduction of Candidates
E. Election of Board Members
F. Announcement of Results will be made on the website

https://www.downtownknoxville.org/alliance/board by July 10, 2024

V. *Approval of Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget

VI. Old Business

VII. New Business
A. Tentative Dates for FY 2024-2025 Board Meetings

downtownknoxville.org/about/meetings/

VIII. Public Forum

IX. Adjournment

*Denotes action items.

2025 Annual Meeting will be held on Monday, June 16, 2025 at 5 pm 

This meeting, and all communications between Board Members, are subject 
to the provisions of the Tennessee Open Meetings Act. 

https://www.downtownknoxville.org/alliance/board/


MINUTES FROM THE 2023 ANNUAL MEETING 
 
The 2023 Annual Meeting of the members of the Downtown Knoxville Alliance (DKA) convened on 
Monday, June 26, 2023, 5:00 p.m. at 17 Market Square #201. 

 
Board members present included board chair, Matthew DeBardelaben, Chip Barry,  
Vince Fusco, Lorie Matthews, John Sanders, Daniel Smith, and Adrienne Webster. DKA and 
Knoxville Chamber staff in attendance included:  Michele Hummel, Angela Lunsford, and 
Robin Thomas. 
 
I. Welcome     

 
Matthew DeBardelaben, chair, called the meeting to order and thanked everyone for attending. 
He announced that a quorum of the membership was present in person and by proxy.  
 

II. Approval of Minutes from 2022 Annual Meeting 
 
Mr. DeBardelaben called for approval of the minutes from the 2022 Annual Meeting. Lorie 
Matthews made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Andrienne Webster seconded the 
motion, and the minutes were approved as presented. 

 
III. Year in Review 

 
A. Activities Report 
 

Matthew DeBardelaben provided highlights of the projects, programs, and services DKA 
accomplished during the Fiscal Year 2022 – 2023. 

 
B. Financial Report 
 

The Corporation's financial report was presented, explaining the various reports which were 
included in the agenda materials. Adrienne Webster made a motion to approve the financial 
report. Daniel Smith seconded the motion, and the financials were approved as presented.  

 
IV. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 Budget 

 
Staff presented the budget for the Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024. Vince Fusco made a motion to 
approve the budget. Daniel Smith seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved as 
presented.  
 

V. Election of New Board Members 
 
A. Nominating Committee Report 

 
Vice Fusco presented the Nominating Committee Report. He noted the committee met on 
May 22. They reviewed the responsibilities, the process, and the policies for nominations. 
After identifying potential nominees, DKA staff verified that all nominees were eligible and 
willing to serve on the Board. All nominees were then placed on the ballot, which was included 
in the agenda packet mailed to DKA members before the Annual Meeting.  
 
 

 



B. Nominations from the Floor 
 
Matthew DeBardelaben opened the floor to nominations. There were no nominations.  

 
C. Close Nominations 

 
With no nominations from the floor, a motion to close nominations was made and seconded, 
which was unanimously approved. 

 
D. Introduction of Candidates 

 
Mr. DeBardelaben asked the nominees to introduce themselves. 

 
E. Election of Board Members 

 
Mr. DeBardelaben asked everyone to return their completed ballot to DKA staff. An 
announcement of who was elected will be posted on our website after June 30. 
 
Blaine Wedekind and Mary Katherine Wormsley were elected.  
 

VI. Old Business 
 
There was no Old Business. 
 

VII. New Business 
 
A.  Tentative Dates for FY 23-24 Board Meetings 

 
Mr. DeBardelaben noted the tentative dates for upcoming board meetings were included in 
the agenda packet. He reminded everyone that all DKA meetings are posted on the DKA 
website. 

 
VIII. Public Forum 

 
Ed Patrick asked about the KAT trolley and bus proposed changes. 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 
With no other business, Mr. DeBardelaben declared the Annual Meeting adjourned and thanked 
everyone for attending. 
 

______________________________________ 
Secretary 

 

  



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD May 31, 2024

Jul '23 - Jun '24
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (71,226)
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1110 · Other Receivable 93,963 
2020 · Accounts Payable (41,237) 
2600 · Accrued Payables 39,426 
2700 · Accrued Wages - 

      1350 - Prepaid Expenses 75.00
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 21,001 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3900 · Change in NA - unrestricted - 
Net cash provided by Financing Activities - 
Net cash increase for period 21,001 
Cash at beginning of period 1,701,713            
Cash at end of period 1,722,714           

Current Liabilities (9,896) 

Accrued Payables (294,136) 

Accounts receivable and Other 24,291 
Prepaid Expenses 300 

Subtotal (279,441)             

Projected Remaining Budgeted Income (Expenses)

Revenue - 
Development (100,000) 
Quality of Life (159,414) 
Business Support (19,623) 
Marketing/Sponsorships (20,795) 
Administration (22,070) 

Subtotal (321,902)             

Projected Cash - Before Minimum Reserve 1,121,370           

Minimum Cash Balance - Reserve (150,000) 
Projected Cash Availability 971,370              



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD May 31, 2024

Project Grants Permit Date Comp Date YE 6/30/2024 Total

314 Union Ave (COK) 250,000 250,000 250,000
Hilton Parking Garage 50,000 10/31/2023 50,000 50,000

300,000 300,000 300,000
* City approval required

Note: Farragut Building/Hyatt Place, 530 S. Gay Street
In 2015, DKA Board agreed to receive $4,578 and abate the increased incremental assessments during the project's 25-year PILOT term 
which ends 3/17/41.

Note:  Marble Alley/formerly Knox County property, 300 State Street 
In 2013, Knox County Commission and Knox County IDB approved a 10-year PILOT for Marble Alley Lofts. Knox County previously held 
this property and was tax-exempt; therefore they did not pay property taxes or DKA assessments. PILOT term ends 12/31/25

Note:  Church + Henley formerly State Supreme Court, 700 Henley Street
In 2019, DKA approved a 10-year abatement of the incremental assessment for the State Supreme Court project starting 48 months after 
developers close on the two parcels to allow for construction and project stabilization.  DKA will continue to receive assessments for both 
properties based on the acquisition cost.  DKA’s assessment is expected to be approx. $3,208 during the abatement time.  The City’s 25 
year PILOT term ends 3/4/48.  The property closed on 9/30/19.  DKA’s abatement ends 9/30/2033.



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget June 30, 2024

Acct # Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 TOTAL FY24 Budget Remainder
Income

CBID Tax Assessments 4020 19,389       1,773         6,485         569,786     34,010       45,466       47,394       225,733     90,109       118,253     24,291       1,182,688    1,125,000          (57,688)        
Investment income 4100 1,125         1,218         1,151         1,192         1,166         1,207         1,208         1,132         798            1,214         799            12,210          500 (11,710)        

Total Income 20,514       2,991         7,636         570,978     35,175       46,672       48,601       226,865     90,907       119,467     25,090       1,194,897    1,125,500         (69,397)       

Expenses
Development

Path to Prosperity 5225 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             - 15,000 - 15,000 15,000               - 
Special Projects 5205 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             - - - - 100,000             100,000        

Total Development -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            - 15,000 - 15,000 115,000            100,000       

Quality of Life
Beautification 5659 77               77               3,533         84               1,852         3,470         90               83               8,582         (3,344)        82               14,586          90,000               75,414          
Ambassador Program 5657 9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         9,676         106,440        117,000             10,560          
Residential - Other 5900 -             -             -             - 
Residential 5901 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             - 3,000 3,000            
Special Art Project -             50,000               50,000          
Security 5700 3,557         3,854         8,012         3,610         15,547       4,509         20,551       3,901         4,932         5,610         5,479         79,561          100,000             20,439          

Total Quality of Life 13,310       13,607       21,221       13,370       27,075       17,655       30,317       13,660       23,190       11,942       15,237       200,586       360,000            159,414       

Business Support
Business Support 5150 523            2,779         5,957         4,259         10,044       4,264         672            924            143            200            612            30,377          50,000               19,623          

Total Business Support 523            2,779         5,957         4,259         10,044       4,264         672            924            143            200            612            30,377         50,000              19,623         

Marketing Expenses
Advertising General 5305 3,536         1,688         5,387         3,191         15,935       6,428         2,045         4,553         3,164         1,943         3,640         51,509          50,000               (1,509)          
Print and Content Development 5306 225            2,532         2,600         10,002       11,082       3,212         424            3,316         1,553         1,340         3,020         39,303          55,000               15,697          
Website - All Committees 5375 550            1,195         1,840         6,058         6,940         1,840         676            838            4,228         2,180         550            26,895          30,000               3,105            
Downtown Scavenger Hunt 5364 210            - 2,000 9,788         11,998          15,000               3,003            
Events and Sponsorship 5360 6,000         - 8,000 - 10,000 - 29,000 - 21,500 - 35,000 109,500        110,000             500               

Total Marketing Expenses 10,312       5,414         17,828       19,460       43,956       11,480       32,144       8,706         30,444       7,462         51,997       239,205       260,000            20,795         

Administration
Meals/ Lodging/ Travel 5420 840            224            194            268            398            - 427 205            166            319            1,189         4,229            6,000 1,771            
Office Expense 5430 505            525            685            492            641            510            571            659            1,249         553            1,623         8,014            7,000 (1,014)          
Bank Fees 5435 19               18               18               18               18               18               18               18               18               18               18               199               200 1 
Postage 5440 12               9 9 14               11               14               18               9 15               422            582            1,116            2,500 1,384            
Professional Dev. 5465 -             -             -             2,475         -             -             940            -             -             -             -             3,415            6,000 2,585            
Professional Svc 5450 - 1,000 - 2,000 3,386         2,420         1,250         -             -             -             -             10,056          12,000               1,944            
Svc Contract - Operations 5460 19,849       19,849 19,849       19,849       19,849       19,849       19,849       19,849       19,849       19,849       24,913       223,403        238,186             14,783          
Insurance Directors/Officers 5750 -             -             -             75               75               75               75               75               75               75               75               600               900 300               
Software 5480 - 65 - 138 69               69               69               69               69               69               69               684               1,000 316               
Supplies 5470 - - - - -             -             -             -             -             -             -             - - - 

Total Administration 21,225       21,691       20,756       25,328       24,447       22,954       23,217       20,883       21,440       21,304       28,470       251,716       273,786            22,070         

Total Expenses 45,370       43,491       65,762       62,418       105,522     56,353       86,351       44,174       75,218       55,908       96,317       736,884       1,058,786         321,902       

Change in NAV (24,856)     (40,500)     (58,126)     508,560     (70,347)     (9,681)       (37,750)     182,692     15,689       63,559       (71,226)     458,013       66,714              391,299       



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

1012 First Bank Checking 729,079.47 

1016 Regions - Checking 147,609.52 

            Total 1005 Cash $ 876,688.99  

            1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM

1022 FirstBank CD 0680 96,075.51 

1026 First Century Bank 256,408.74 

1027 SunTrust MM Account 248,080.41 

1029 Home Federal Bank - MM 245,459.96 

            Total 1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM $ 846,024.62  

         Total 1000 Cash & Cash Equiv. $ 1,722,713.61  

      Total Bank Accounts $ 1,722,713.61  

      Accounts Receivable

         1110 Other Receivable 24,290.83 

      Total Accounts Receivable $ 24,290.83  

      Other Current Assets

         1350 Prepaid Expenses 300.00 

      Total Other Current Assets $ 300.00  

   Total Current Assets $ 1,747,304.44  

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,747,304.44  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

2020 Accounts Payable 9,896.22 

            Total 2000 Acc. Payable $ 9,896.22  

         Total Accounts Payable $ 9,896.22  

         Other Current Liabilities

            2600 Accrued Payables 294,135.73 

         Total Other Current Liabilities $ 294,135.73  

      Total Current Liabilities $ 304,031.95  

   Total Liabilities $ 304,031.95  

   Equity

      3900 Change in NA - unrestricted 985,259.17 

      Net Income 458,013.32 

   Total Equity $ 1,443,272.49  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 1,747,304.44  

Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Profit and Loss

May 2024

  

TOTAL

Income

4020 CBID Assessment 24,290.83

4100 Interest on Cash Reserves 799.37

Total Income $25,090.20

GROSS PROFIT $25,090.20

Expenses

5100 Business Support

5150 Merchant Support 612.16

Total 5100 Business Support 612.16

5300 Marketing Expenses

5305 Advertising 3,640.00

5306 Print and Content Development 3,019.74

5360 Sponsorships - Events 35,000.00

5364 Downtown Scavenger Hunt 9,787.50

5375 Website 550.00

Total 5300 Marketing Expenses 51,997.24

5400 Administration

5420 Meals/Lodging/Travel 1,188.58

5430 Office Expenses 1,623.48

5435 Bank Fees 18.00

5440 Postage 582.40

5460 Services Contract 24,913.36

5480 Software 68.83

5490 Insurance D&O 75.00

Total 5400 Administration 28,469.65

5650 Quality of Life

5655 Bike Patrol 5,479.13

5657 Ambassador Program 9,676.33

5659 Beautification 82.00

Total 5650 Quality of Life 15,237.46

Total Expenses $96,316.51

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -71,226.31

NET INCOME $ -71,226.31



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows

May 2024

    

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -71,226.31

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

1110 Other Receivable 93,962.55

1350 Prepaid Expenses 75.00

2020 Acc. Payable:Accounts Payable -41,236.67

2600 Accrued Payables 39,426.33

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 92,227.21

Net cash provided by operating activities $21,000.90

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $21,000.90

Cash at beginning of period 1,701,712.71

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $1,722,713.61



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/R Aging Detail
As of May 31, 2024

    

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM CUSTOMER DUE DATE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

Current

05/31/2024 Invoice 04302026 City of Knoxville. 06/30/2024 24,290.83 24,290.83

Total for Current $24,290.83 $24,290.83

TOTAL $24,290.83 $24,290.83



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/P Aging Detail
As of May 31, 2024

    

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM VENDOR DUE DATE PAST DUE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

Current

05/31/2024 Bill 05312024 Knoxville Opera Company 05/31/2024 10 2,500.00 2,500.00

05/31/2024 Bill INV012554 Knoxville Chamber 06/01/2024 9 1,340.02 1,340.02

05/31/2024 Bill 05312024 Thomas, Robin 06/15/2024 -5 416.60 416.60

05/30/2024 Bill 2405541 High Resolutions, Inc 06/19/2024 -9 232.30 232.30

05/30/2024 Bill INV114068 Off Duty Management, Inc. 06/29/2024 -19 1,072.50 1,072.50

05/31/2024 Bill 060424 Southern Bloom Social 06/30/2024 -20 3,378.55 3,378.55

05/31/2024 Bill 11516 MoxCar. 06/30/2024 -20 956.25 956.25

Total for Current $9,896.22 $9,896.22

TOTAL $9,896.22 $9,896.22



 KNOXVILLE CBID MANAGEMENT CORPORATION  
ANNUAL MEETING ELECTION BALLOT 

 
 
Membership will elect four board positions – two business, one resident, and one stakeholder. Their 
term starts July 1, 2024, serving a three-year term ending June 30, 2027.  
 

 
Business 

(select two of the five candidates) 

 

   Heather Beck/Barber McMurry 

   Cliff Brooks/Arcadis/IBI Group 

   *Faris Eid/DIA Architects 

   *Bobby McCarter/Jackson Central  

   Zack Roskop/Knox Brew Hub 

 

         (write-in candidate if someone is nominated from the floor) 

  

 
Resident 

(select one of the two candidates) 

 

  *Dana Dalton 

  *Nikki Elliott 
 

         (write-in candidate if someone is nominated from the floor) 

 
 

Stakeholder 
(select one of the two candidates) 

 

  *Courtney Bergmeier/Bijou Theatre 

  *Gay Lyons/East Tennessee Historical Society 
 

         (write-in candidate if someone is nominated from the floor) 

 

 
*Indicates the person is a DKA property owner. 

 
 

 
Election results will be verified by Bible Harris Smith and can be found on our website at:  

downtownknoxville.org/alliance/board/ after July 10, 2024. 
 
  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
  FY 2023 - 2024 

 
 
 
Matthew DeBardelaben, Chair 
Term began:  7/21 
Term expires:  6/24, 2nd term 
Stakeholder Representative 
 
Chip Barry 
City of Knoxville 
Term began:  4/23 
Appt by Mayor of the City of Knoxville 
Owner 
 
Natalea Cummings 
Mast General Store 
Term began: 12/23 
Term expires:  6/25 
Completing unexpired term 
Business Representative 
Owner 
 
Vince Fusco 
Term began:  7/22 
Term expires:  6/25, 2nd term 
Resident Representative 
Owner 
 
Lorie Matthews, Vice-Chair 
Term began:  7/21 
Term expires:  6/24, 2nd term 
Residential Representative 
Owner 
 
John Sanders 
Sanders Pace Architecture 
Term began:  7/21 
Term expires:  6/24, 1st term 
Business Representative 
Owner 
 
 
 

Adrienne Webster, Treasurer 
AOWebster Tax & Accounting 
Term began:  7/21 
Term expires:  6/24, 1st term 
Business Representative 
 
Blaine Wedekind 
Balter Beerworks/STIR 
Term began:  7/23 
Term expires:  6/26, 1st term 
Business Representative 
Owner 
 
Mary Katherine Wormsley, Secretary 
Hatcher-Hill Properties, LLC 
Term began:  7/23 
Term expires:  6/26, 2nd term 
Stakeholder Representative 
Owner 
 
Ex-officio Board Members 
 
Representative Sam McKenzie 
State House of Representatives 
rep.sam.mckenzie@capitol.tn.gov 
 
Senator Richard Briggs, M.D. 
State Senate 
sen.richard.briggs@capitol.tn.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
KNOXVILLE CBID MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 

BIOGRAPHIES FOR BOARD DIRECTOR NOMINEES 
 
Business Representative Candidates  
 
Heather Beck/Barber McMurry Architects 
Heather Beck is Vice President and Director of Communications at BarberMcMurry 
Architects. She joined the firm in 2018. She oversees BMA’s communications, marketing, 
and community engagement efforts, as well as culture and human resources. Heather 
earned her Bachelor of Arts in English from the University of the Cumberlands and her 
MBA from Tennessee Tech. She is also Accredited in Public Relations (APR) and is a WELL 
Accredited Professional (WELL AP). She and her husband, Josh, have four rescue animals 
and practice regenerative agriculture. 
 
Community engagement, particularly with the downtown community, is important to 
her. At BarberMcMurry, Beck led the development of the firm’s Day of Service — a day set 
aside for the firm to donate pro-bono design services to a local non-profit. In its two years 
of existence, Day of Service has benefitted two downtown entities: Knox Area Rescue 
Ministries and Interfaith Health Center. Beck is also a founder of Clays for Children, a 
fundraiser for East Tennessee Children’s Hospital. She actively encourages BMA 
employees to be involved in the community, particularly downtown. 
 
Community involvement: 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance Marketing Committee, 2019-present 
Knoxville Chamber Board of Directors, 2023-present 
Pellissippi State Community College Foundation Board of Directors & Development 
Chair, 2023-present 
Humane Society Tennessee Valley Board of Directors & Secretary, 2023-present 
Girls Inc. of the Tennessee Valley Board of Directors, 2020-present 
tnAchieves mentor 
Knoxville Museum of Art Guild  
 
Cliff Brooks/Arcadis - IBI Group 
Cliff Brooks is a principal at Arcadis, Inc. and has worked downtown in the WROL 
Building since 2007. Before that, their office was located on West Jackson Avenue in the 
Old City. He has witnessed and influenced changes in the Old City and Downtown for 
nearly two decades.  
 
He has two daughters, both currently at the University of Tennessee- Chattanooga and 
both graduates from West High School. Cliff grew up in Alabama and graduated with a 
bachelor’s degree in Environmental Design and Masters in Landscape Architecture from 
Auburn University. He currently holds licensure as a Landscape Architect in several 
states throughout the Southeast including Tennessee. Cliff has volunteered with the East 
Tennessee Community Design Center as a professional liaison, as Chapter President of 
the ASLA East Tennessee Chapter, and as an AYSO Soccer Coach. 
 
 
 



 
 
Professionally, Cliff has been involved with numerous projects around Knoxville including 
the Knoxville Bicycle and Pedestrian Bridge, renovation of the Knoxville Museum of Art’s 
north garden, High Ground Park (formerly Fort Higley), Fort Dickerson Park and Pat 
Summitt Plaza on UT’s campus. A few notable current projects in which he is involved 
include Kern’s Bakery, Knoxville Multi-Use Stadium, and Austin Homes at First Creek. 
 
If selected as a business representative, Cliff will bring his passion for helping Knoxville 
create enjoyable and healthy outdoor spaces to the downtown and community at large. 
 
Faris Eid/DIA Architects 
Faris Eid is the Founding Principal of Design Innovation Architects (DIA). He established 
the firm in 1989, and this year DIA proudly celebrates its 35th anniversary. Faris earned 
his Bachelor's in Architecture in 1983 from the University of Tennessee. Before founding 
DIA, he gained valuable experience over six years at a nationally recognized design firm in 
Atlanta. 
 
Faris believes in contributing to the well-being of the community, in his time, as well as 
financially and through design. This principle is deeply embedded in DIA’s philosophy, 
code of practice, and core values, guiding the firm’s operations and community 
engagement. His dedication to community service is reflected in his past roles as: Board 
Member of the Knoxville Chamber of Commerce, President of the Knoxville Chapter of the 
Entrepreneurs Organization (EO), Member of the City of Knoxville Public Arts 
Committee, and President/Board Member of the Knoxville Housing Partnership, as well 
as his service on the boards of the East Tennessee Community Design Center, Leadership 
Knoxville (Class of 2003), Knox Heritage Board of Directors, and the Knoxville Historic 
Zoning Commission. 
 
Downtown and surrounding area Projects completed by DIA under Faris’s leadership 
include amongst others: The Gallery Lofts (Mast General Store) where DIA’s offices are 
located, the Knoxville Chamber of Commerce, KCDC, the 500 Block master-planning 
including the old S&W, Hyatt Place (Historic Farragut Hotel), Pheonix Building, Regas 
Square, Lonesome Dove (Patric Sullivan’s), Pet’s Coffee Shop, Hotel Cleo and 
Lilu.  Significant projects currently under construction include Lone Tree pass, The 
Buford Delaney Building, and the Knoxville Multi-Sports Stadium 
 
Bobby McCarter/Jackson Central Group 
Bobby McCarter is a native of Knoxville and a graduate of Central High School. After 
attending ETSU, he returned to Knoxville in 2008 and became involved in the downtown 
community. In 2016, he opened Merchants of Beer, a flagship corner bar in the Old City. 
Bobby is now the Director of Operations for the Jackson Central Group and is dedicated 
to the growth of the Old City. He is also involved in residential and commercial real 
estate, aiming to create a thriving downtown for people to work, live, and play. 
 
Zack Roskop/Knox Brew Hub 
Zack Roskop was born in Ithaca, New York but has spent most of his life in Knoxville, TN 
since the age of three. In 2014 he took the leap to start his own business. With a minibus 
he purchased from Craigslist, a self-built website and three local breweries willing to play 
along, Knox Brew Tours was born. Fast-forward to today and KBT is 10 years old, nearing 
its 2,000th guided brewery tour and works with over 20 local breweries. During Covid the 
craft beer bar where all of Knox Brew Tours public tours started from because 



available and Zack's second business Knox Brew Hub was born. Knox Brew Hub strives to 
be "local beer's best friend" and acts as sort of a visitor center for visitors curious in our 
growing beer community. Last summer Fred Beans & Rice: Cajun Kitchen (named after 
Zack's father Fred) was added inside of the Hub to increase and add to their food 
offerings. Today Zack lives in Parkridge with his wife Amy and their four pets, Cullen, 
Charlie, Luther and Porchia. There is no doubt that Zack has three big loves in his life: 
local beer, meeting new people and the city of Knoxville. 
 
Resident Representative Candidate 
 
Dana Dalton 
Dana Dalton has been a downtown Knoxville resident for 10 years. She works remotely as 
counsel for SAIC, a government contractor. Dana was born and raised in Knox County and 
is a graduate of the University of Tennessee College of Law and holds a Masters in Public 
Administration.  
 
She has served on the Downtown Alliance Marketing Committee for several years and 
helped establish the RiverHill Gateway Neighborhood Association which includes The 
Women's Basketball Hall of Fame, James White Fort, and Blount Mansion.  
   
Nikki Elliott 
Nikki Elliott moved to the Knoxville area in 2003 and her family have lived in Downtown 
Knoxville since 2020. Nikki is passionate about improving Downtown Knoxville not just for 
stakeholders, but also for visitors in ways including safety, beautification, and 
development.  
 
Nikki is a Partner and CFO at Elliott Advisory Group, a tax/consulting firm in Knoxville, of 
which she and her husband founded in 2019. Nikki also graduated from South College with 
a BS in Accounting and is a Certified Public Accountant. 
 
Nikki serves on the Knoxville Entrepreneur Center board, City of Knoxville Audit 
Committee, DKA Quality of Life Committee, ACE of Greater Knoxville board, and is a 
curator for PechaKucha Knoxville Chapter. 
 
Stakeholder Representative Candidate 
 
Courtney Bergmeier/Bijou Theatre 
Courtney Bergmeier serves as the Executive Director of the historic Bijou Theatre. A 
Cincinnati native, she moved to Knoxville in 2005 to attend the University of Tennessee, 
where she attained her undergraduate degree. Since graduating, Courtney’s career has 
been centered around music and performing arts. Her tenure at AC Entertainment, 
starting in 2010, saw her rise to become the company’s first female talent buyer, a role 
that allowed her to book artists and negotiate deals for venues in Knoxville and the 
Southeastern region. Seeking a deeper connection to the events she booked, she 
transitioned to venue management and accepted the job of Assistant General Manager of 
the Bijou Theatre in 2015. 
One of the defining moments of Courtney’s career was her leadership during the global 
pandemic, a time when the arts faced unprecedented challenges. Her resilience and 
strategic thinking led to her promotion to Executive Director of the Bijou Theatre in 2021. 
In her current role, she oversees the Bijou's strategic plan, administration, programming, 
fundraising, community outreach, and education. 



 
 
Outside of her professional life, Courtney enjoys the great outdoors, often hiking and 
camping with her husband and pup. She also loves to travel, immersing herself in 
different cultures and gaining a global perspective. Despite these adventures, Knoxville 
remains her beloved home, a testament to her deep-rooted connection to the community 
she serves. 
 
Gay Lyons/East Tennessee Historical Society 
Gay Henry Lyons grew up in Loudon County. She received a BA in English from Pfeiffer 
College, an MA in English from the University of Tennessee, and a PhD in political science 
from the University of Tennessee. She was a professor of English and political science at 
Pellissippi State Community College for over 30 years (1980-2011). During that time and 
following her retirement, she was a caterer, columnist, magazine editor, and freelance 
writer. In addition to many years of fundraising and event planning as a volunteer for 
organizations such as Knoxville Botanical Garden, Knoxville Museum of Art, Leadership 
Knoxville, Dogwood Arts, and Knox Heritage, she was capital campaign manager at Knox 
Heritage and development director at Positively Living/Choice Health Network. She is 
currently chief development officer at the East Tennessee Historical Society located at 
601 S. Gay Street. Gay and her husband Bill bought their first downtown home at 
Kendrick Place in 2004. They moved to The Overlook in 2020.  

 
 
  



 
 

KNOXVILLE CBID MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 
BUDGET FY 2024 – 2025 

 

  

BUDGET DRAFT BUDGET
FY 23-24 FY 24-25

Income
CBID Tax Assessment 1,125,000$                       1,125,000$                      
Investment Income 500$                                 8,000$                            

Total Income 1,125,500$                       1,133,000$                      

Expenses
Business Support

Merchant Support 50,000$                           50,000$                          
Total Business Support 50,000$                           50,000$                          

Development
Special Projects/Impact Program 100,000$                         100,000$                        
Path to Prosperity 15,000$                            15,000$                           

Total Development 115,000$                          115,000$                         

Marketing Expenses
Advertising General 50,000$                           50,000$                          
Print & Content Development 55,000$                            55,000$                          
Website-all committees 30,000$                           30,000$                          
Events and Sponsorships 110,000$                          110,000$                         
Brand Refinement -$                                  25,000$                          
Downtown Scavenger Hunt 15,000$                            20,000$                          

Total Marketing Expenses 260,000$                         290,000$                        

Quality of Life
Security 100,000$                         100,000$                        
Ambassador Program 117,000$                           117,000$                         
Beautification 90,000$                           70,000$                          
Trash Compactor -$                                  75,000$                           
Open Street Activation -$                                  10,000$                           
Residential 3,000$                              3,000$                             

Total Quality of Life 310,000$                          375,000$                        

Administration
Meals/Lodging/Travel 6,000$                              6,000$                            
Office Expense/Supplies 7,000$                              7,500$                             
Bank Fees 200$                                 200$                                
Postage 2,500$                              2,500$                             
Professional Development 6,000$                              6,000$                            
Professional Services 12,000$                            12,000$                           
Services Contract 238,186$                          244,173$                         
Insurance Directors/Officers 900$                                 900$                                
Software 1,000$                              1,500$                             

Total Administration 273,786$                          280,773$                         

Total Expenses 1,008,786$                      1,110,773$                       

Change in NAV 116,714$                           22,227$                           



 
DOWNTOWN KNOXVILLE ALLIANCE 

2024 – 2025 BOARD MEETINGS 
 
 

July 15, 2024 - 11:30 am 
August 19, 2024 – 11:30 am 

September 16, 2024 - 11:30 am 
October 21, 2024 - 11:30 am 

November 18, 2024 - 11:30 am 
December 16, 2024 - 11:30 am 

 
January 27, 2025 - 11:30 am (moved due to MLK Day holiday) 
February 17, 2025 - 11:30 am (budget workshop starting at 10) 

March 17, 2025 - 11:30 am 
April 21, 2025 - 11:30 am 
May 19, 2025 - 11:30 am 

June 16, 2025 - 5:00 pm (Annual Meeting & June Board Meeting) 
 
 
 
 


	DKA May 2024 Financial Package
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows May 2024 Page 1 of 3.pdf
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows May 2024 Page 2 of 3.pdf
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows May 2024 Page 3 of 3.pdf
	DKA P&L 5.31.24.pdf
	DKA Balance Sheet 5.31.24.pdf

	2024 Annual Meeting Packet day of meeting
	Annual membership Meeting
	Agenda
	june 17, 2024, 5:00 pm


	minutes from the 2023 annual meeting
	knoxville cbid management corporation
	annual meeting election ballot

	Board of Directors
	FY 2023 - 2024
	knoxville cbid management corporation
	biographies for board director nominees

	knoxville cbid management corporation
	budget FY 2024 – 2025

	Downtown knoxville alliance
	2024 – 2025 board meetings




